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I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
Enclosed is a summary of questions and answers discussed at the pre-submission conferences that took
place on July 19th and July 21st, 2016. Also included are answers to questions that were sent to the Next
Gen NYCHA email address at NextGenNeighborhoods@nycha.nyc.gov. The deadline to submit questions
th
has been extended to no later than 2:00 PM on Friday, August 26 , 2016, and must include the firm name,
name of the respondent, title, address, telephone number, and e-mail address of the respondent.
1.

How does NYCHA anticipate sizing of the upfront lease payment?
Applicants must submit one scenario where the payment to NYCHA represents the value of a 60-year
ground lease paid upfront for use of the site over that term. Valuing this payment is part of the
competitive scoring criteria. At their discretion, Applicants may also submit additional scenarios that
include longer-term ground leases. Additional information on the competitive criteria can be found in
RFP Section IX: Developer Selection Criteria and Process.

2.

Is NYCHA aware of any environmental issues, or underground utilities that would have to be
relocated at these developments?
At Holmes towers there is a utility line to the north of the proposed sites. NYCHA will convey these
sites as is, and will continue to do our due diligence to disclose any environmental issues that may
exist.

3.

Does NYCHA have a site survey and additional information on the existing buildings?
Additional maps and information of the Development Sites are included in Exhibit A of this Addendum.

4.

Will there be any requirements to comply with MWBE contracts in construction? Will MWBE goals
be included in the contract documents as part of this project?
NYCHA and HPD strongly encourage M/WBE and non-profit developers to submit Proposals under this
RFP.

5.

Are developers responsible for site improvements defined as landscaping, playground upgrades etc.,
for the designated tax lot to-be-created, or the entire NYCHA grounds?
Proposals will be evaluated on the quality and scope of site improvements within, but not necessarily
limited to, the suggested tax lot. Site improvements are allowed within the whole of the NYCHA
development. Site maintenance and other obligations of the selected Developer will be limited to the
to-be created tax lot.

6.

Are developers required to make capital repairs or upgrades to existing units, like mold issues in
existing buildings?
One of the aims of the NextGen Neighborhoods Program is to generate a significant financial return to
NYCHA in order to address much needed capital repairs to the existing public housing. Developer(s)
selected throught this RFP for the NextGen Neighborhoods Projects are not required to make capital
repairs or improvements to existing units.

7.

Is there an employment program?
Information on employment and resident hiring can be found in RFP Section XIII: Additional
Regulations.

8.

Will the successful Developer be responsible for Special Inspections and Materials Testing?
Yes, special inspections would be a requirement of the developer .

9.

Is there a prevailing wage requirement for construction?
It is the responsibility of the Developer to comply with necessary prevailing wage requirements should
construction and permanent financing sources require it. Davis Bacon compliance is required for 12 or
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more units with HOME funds, 9 or more units with Project Based Vouchers, and any other CDBG
construction project with more than $2,000 in funding.
10. Will Union Labor be required on this project when it goes out for construction?
No, Union Labor is not required. Applicants that can demonstrate a successful history of labor

relations in construction and property management and operations will be viewed favorably.
Please refer to RFP Section VII: Additional Regulations.
11. Is the ZFA allotted to the project approximate? Are developers to do a zoning study of the entire
zoning lot, or just for the tax lot?
Yes, available zoning floor areas stated in the RFP are approximate.
At Development Site 1 it is expected that the Site will be re-zoned to R8 with a C2-4 commercial
overlay along Third Avenue and Nevins Street to accommodate additional residential and commercial
development through a ULURP process. Applicants should assume that following a successful ULURP
process, Site 1 will have available residential zoning floor area, capped at approximately 500,000
square feet in total.
At Development Site 2 310,000 sf is the approximate amount of existing residential floor area
available. No re-zoning is expected at Site 2.
12. Can developers use zoning floor area that’s available to the entire tax lot?
Please see the answer to question 11 in RFP Addendum 1.
13. Is the retail that’s mentioned in the RFP in context to the Wyckoff Gardens site, and not Holmes
towers?
Yes, at Development Site 1 there is a minimum requirement of 10,000 square feet of both community
facility and commercial use. At Development Site 2 there is a minimum requirement of 5,000 square
feet of community facility space. No commercial is required at Site 2.
14. Can the tax lot boundaries be moved as long as you maintain the legal requirement in terms of
minimum distance?
Yes.
15. Is there a legal description of the existing parking-in that there may be no requirement for the
current residents but is there a legal mandate in terms of when these buildings were built for the
number of parking spaces required?
There is a legal requirement for public housing buildings, which includes mandated parking
requirements per zoning lot. Existing buildings should be left in compliance with all applicable zoning
regulations.
16. The RFP mentions a HUD disposition approval process- can you describe how that coincides with the
whole ULURP timing?
NYCHA requires a Section 18 application and approval by HUD for land disposition or long-term
ground lease. NYCHA will be the applicant and work with the selected development team on
requirements, including but not limited to environmental approvals and consultation with NYCHA
residents and their elected leadership. Section 18 is required for both Development Sites. This process
should coincide with a standard predevelopment timeline and can take place concurrently with
ULURP.
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17. Is there flexibility on the 60 year lease term, or is that the minimum?
60 years is the minimum term. All responses need to include a 60 year lease term; however,
Applicants can submit additional scenarios that include longer-term ground leases.
18. There is a qualification point about having built at least 200 ground up units in the last 7 years. Is
this an absolute threshold? For example, if a developer has built 185 units and rehabbed 300 units
or if someone in partnership hasn’t met the criteria what does that mean? If you haven’t built 200
ground up units should you not respond to this RFP?
All Applicants must meet all threshold requirements. If a Joint Venture is proposed then the threshold
requirement must be met by at least one of the general partners or managing members involved in
the proposal. Similarly, development experience should be demostrated by projects for which the
Applicant was a part of the development ownership entity, or more specifically the general
partnership or managing member.
19. Is the parking requirement under the zoning code waived?
At Development Site 1 Applicants may assume that following a successful ULURP process, no on-site
parking accessory to the new development will be required, however additional parking may be
proposed if deemed appropriate.
At Development Site 2, Applicants should comply with parking requirements.
20. How can I receive more information on how to apply?
Any additional questions should be submitted via email to NextGenNeighborhoods@nycha.nyc.gov by
no later than 2:00 PM on August 22, 2016, and must include the firm name, name of respondent, title,
address, telephone numberand e-mail address of the individual.
21. Will the sign-in sheet from the pre-submission conference today be made available?
Sign-in sheets are included in RFP Addendum 1.
22. Since this is a hybrid, in terms of the programing and financing—Do all units (both market rate and
affordable) have to comply with the ELLA term sheet unit sizes and splits?
The NextGen Neighborhoods Program does not require use of the ELLA term sheet. If developers
would like to assume subsidy under [ELLA] term sheet, they should assume all of the requirements of
the ELLA program for the affordable units. ELLA requirements do not apply to market rate units.
23. What ownership participation should NYCHA or the Developer have?
NYCHA will own the land but does not anticipate any ownership or interest in the new buildings. All
proposals are required to provide for an upfront payment to NYCHA that represents the value of use
of the site over the ground lease term. Other forms of ownership structure that an Applicant proposes
will be evaluated.
24. For using subsidized financing, please confirm that NYCHA is telling developers to assume what
program term sheets allow. So unlike past RFPs there isn’t a competitive benefit to assuming less
subsidy per unit as opposed to what term sheets allow?
Yes, developers are able to maximize the subsidy under the term sheets.
25. Will the PILOT last the length of the ground lease?
Proposals may assume a full tax exemption for the first 25 years. Beginning in year 26 (and eligible for
renegotiation at the end of the ground lease), Applicants will reimburse NYCHA for a PILOT payment
made to the City of New York equal to 10% of shelter rents.
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26. What is the process for obtaining the PILOT?
The selected applicant will receive the benefit of NYCHA’s contractual Pilot agreement with the City as
set forth in the Ground Lease with NYCHA.
27. Does the PILOT apply to affordable units, market rate units, community use, and parking?
Subject to an applicable legal opinion that must be obtained from the New York City Law Department,
the totality of the land and the building to be constructed would benefit from PILOT.
28. In reference to Wyckoff; NYCHA is disposing of 500,000 zoning square feet of residential floor area,
and not total floor area?
Yes, residential zoning floor area will be capped at approximately 500,000 square feet in total.
29. How do you want to receive financial offers on the Wyckoff Gardens site understanding that the
ultimate sf of the two buildings is somewhat determined by ULURP and could result in less sf than
the 500,000?
We ask for all proposals to be based on the assumption of a successful ULURP that allows 500,000
square feet of available residential zoning floor area.
30. At Wyckoff, no replacement parking is needed- however one of the community principles is that
residents are looking for additional parking; how do developers approach this?
During Visioning Sessions residents expressed concerns with the impact of increased density on the
availability of parking in the neighborhood generally. Proposals that align with the Community
Principles will be scored favorably. Each competitive criteria is weighted. Parking as well as any other
proposed elements of the development are weighted against the pros and cons of other categories.
31. As a result of the outreach process with community residents, were there any expressions on the
part of the community in regards to particular commercial components at Wyckoff?
The preferences are outlined in the Community Principles document which is included as an Exhibit to
the RFP.
32. Regarding “Development Site 2; Holmes Towers, Upper East Side (Manhattan)”: must we submit a
proposal with a building on the “Suggested Tax Lot” or can we propose the new tax lot and building
be located somewhere else on block 1573?
We may allow some flexibility on the bounds of the suggested tax lot for design modifications;
however proposals must conform to the site defined in the RFP.
33. Does the 310,000 sf of residential zoning floor area mean you get an extra 5,000 sf for the
community space? Would this apply to the market rate units?
Yes, however those are approximate. Proposals will be limited to the available zoning floor area of the
site and this would apply to the entire site.
34. Regarding Holmes towers; how many sf of residential, community facility and retail do you expect
to get under ULURP?
There is no ULURP expected at Holmes Towers. The available residential zoning floor area is
approximately 310,000 square feet.
35. Can we lease the ~5,000 sq. ft. community center space in the Holmes Towers Site?
Yes, additional preference will be given to Proposals that include Letters of Interest from Community
Facility operators.
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36. Can senior housing be proposed as the affordable housing units?
Yes. Applicants should comply with applicable term sheets and any other requirements of the proposed
program. Proposals should describe how the affordable units will be distributed.
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HPD and NYCHA Collaboration
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Site Information

Site 1 – Wyckoff Gardens (Brooklyn)

Not to scale. All dimensions are approximate.
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Site Information
Site 1 – Wyckoff Gardens (Brooklyn)
• Located on the main campus of Wyckoff Gardens (Part of Block 394, Lot 1).
• Proposals must comply with required distance between new and existing buildings.
• Suggested Tax Lot A is an L-shaped parcel at the southeast corner of Wyckoff and
Nevins Streets. Suggested Tax Lot B is an L- shaped parcel at the southwest corner
of Wyckoff Street and 3rd Avenue. Each Suggested Tax Lot currently contains a
NYCHA parking lot and landscaped yard. Site improvements are allowed within the
whole of the NYCHA development.
• Currently zoned R6. It is expected that the Site will be re-zoned to R8 with a C2-4
commercial overlay along Third Avenue and Nevins Street through a ULURP
process.
• Applicants should assume that the Site will have available residential zoning floor
area, capped at approximately 500,000 square feet in total. Applicants may assume
that no on-site parking accessory to the new development will be required.
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Site Information
Site 1 – Wyckoff Gardens (Brooklyn)
• Proposals should include a total of approximately 500 residential units.
• Proposals should include a minimum of 10,000 square feet of commercial
space and 10,000 square feet of community facility space total.
• Street trees are only required along the frontages of the proposed tax lots
within the Site.
• A maximum of 81 total parking spaces will be displaced at Wyckoff
Gardens; there are sufficient spaces elsewhere on the campus to ensure all
current permit holders will continue to park at the development.
Applicants should not include any replacement parking.
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Site Information

Site 2 – Holmes Towers (Manhattan)

Not to scale. All dimensions are approximate.
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Site Information
Site 2 – Holmes Towers (Manhattan)
• Located on the main campus of Holmes Towers (Part of Block 1573, Lot 20).
• Proposals must comply with required distance between new and existing
buildings.
• The Suggested Tax Lot is a triangular shaped parcel on the north side of E.
92nd Street between FDR Drive and 1st Avenue. The current use is a play area
and pedestrian walk. Site improvements are allowed within the whole of the
NYCHA development.
• Currently zoned R8. Applicants can assume that no re-zoning will be required.
The total residential zoning floor area available is approximately 310,000 sf.
• For the Proposal, Applicants can assume design flexibility through certain
height and setback modifications.
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Site Information
Site 2 – Holmes Towers (Manhattan)
• Proposals should include approximately 300 residential units.
• Proposals should include a minimum 5,000 square feet of community facility
space. Required community facility space is separate and apart from the
existing Stanley Isaacs Neighborhood Center.
• Proposals should include the replacement of play area to be displaced as a
part of the Project, and/or should propose a comparable community benefit.
• Street trees are required only along the frontage of the Development Site.
• If existing NYCHA parking is displaced Applicants should include replacement
parking in Proposals.
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Financing and Underwriting
1.

Site Disposition

2.

Developer Fee

3.

Financing and Subsidy

4.

Lease Renewal, Refinancing, and Recapture Restrictions

5.

Real Property Taxes
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Threshold Criteria
1.

Completeness of Proposal

2.

Comparable Development Experience

3.

Comparable Management Experience

4.

Development Capacity and Current Workload

5.

Conformance with RFP

6.

Ability to Finance

7.

Feasibility of Development Proposal

8.

Adverse Findings
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Competitive Criteria
1. Financial Return to NYCHA

Weight 20%

2. Financial Feasibility of Development Proposal

Weight 20%

3. Quality of Building & Urban Design

Weight: 20%

4. Program

Weight: 20%

5. Development Experience, Management, and Capacity

Weight: 20%
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Important Dates
Monday, July 25th

Site Inspection-Wyckoff Gardens
10 AM – 12 PM

Wednesday, July 27th

Site Inspection- Holmes Towers
10 AM – 12 PM

Monday, August 22nd

Last day to submit Questions by 2 PM to
NextGenNeighborhoods@nycha.nyc.gov

Friday, September 30th

Submission of Proposals by 4 PM
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